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MEMORANDUM 

TO:        Alcoholic Beverage Control Board  
 

DATE:  September 10, 2019 

FROM: Erika McConnell, Director 
 

RE:  4380 and 4526 Gold Miners Lodge 
 Restaurant and Motel 

 
Requested 
Action: 

License renewals 

  
Statutory  
Authority: 

AS 04.06.090(b):  “The board shall review all applications for licenses made under 
this title and may order the director to issue, renew, revoke, transfer, or suspend 
licenses and permits authorized under this title.” 

  
Staff Rec.: Deny the renewals under AS 04.11.330(a)(5) 
 
 
Update: At the April board meeting, the board tabled the renewal of these licenses in order for the 
applicant to provide justification that the City of Houston protest is unreasonable and information 
regarding what will happen with the license and on what time table. Counsel for the Gauthiers 
provided additional information, included in this tab. The City of Houston also provided additional 
information, included in this tab. 
 
At the July 9 board meeting, the licensee’s attorney stated that transfers would be submitted in time 
for the September meeting. The board tabled consideration of the renewals to this meeting. At the 
July 29 board meeting, the board heard from the mayor of the City of Houston but did not take any 
additional action. 
 
Transfer applications were received at the AMCO office on August 15, 2019. As of the writing of 
this memo, the applications are still being reviewed due to complicated security interest documents. 
 
Background:  License #4380 is a restaurant or eating place license, and license #4526 is a beverage 
dispensary—tourism license, both issued to Gold Miners Lodge Restaurant and Motel LLC with a 
premises at 20333 W. Parks Highway, in Houston. Gold Miners Lodge Restaurant and Motel LLC is 
limited liability company in good standing owned by Brian Gauthier 50% and Sandra Gauthier 50%. 
 
On October 11, 2018, it came to AMCO’s attention that Gold Miners Lodge Restaurant and Motel 
LLC had leased its property and two liquor licenses to John and Inthira Zavacky on October 1, 
2017. This lease states on page 1, “Lessee [John A. Zavacky and Inthira Zavacky] leases from Lessor 
[Gold Miners Lodge and Restaurant & Motel, LLC] the business, liquor licenses related to, and real 
property … more particularly described as … 20333 W. Parks Highway, Houston, Alaska.” An 
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NOV was issued for license #4526 on October 16, 2018, which was provided to the board along 
with the licensee response at the February 2019 meeting. In her response, Sandra Gauthier claims 
“John & Inthira Zavacky have never used or been offered temporarily to use our liquor licenses and 
they have not yet even opened their new business.” It is hard to understand how the licensee can 
claim that the Zavacky’s have never “been offered” the use of the liquor licenses when they have a 
signed lease stating that the licenses are leased to the Zavacky’s. (An identical NOV was issued for 
license #4380 on February 27, 2019.) 
 
AS 04.11.450 states at (a), “A person other than a licensee may not have a direct or indirect financial 
interest in the business for which a license is issued,” and at (c), “A license may not be leased by a 
licensee to another person, partnership, limited liability organization, or corporation.” 
 
AS 04.11.330(a)(5) states that the renewal of a license shall be denied if “the requirements of AS 
04.11.420—04.11.450 relating to zoning, ownership of the license, and financing of the licensee have 
not been met.” 
 
In addition to violating AS 04.11.450 by leasing the licenses, the licensee has lost right of possession 
of the property, which is a requirement for a license. 
 
The City of Houston protests the renewal of both licenses, stating that the licensee did not meet the 
City’s ordinance for liquor license regulations and the applicant had not operated the licensed 
premises for at least 30 eight-hour days during the preceding calendar years. 
 
The license is not currently being operated as the Zavacky’s are performing renovations on the 
property. The licensee submitted a waiver of operations for 2018. 
 
 
Attachments: New information at July meeting 
  Letter from Dalrymple Law (counsel for Gauthiers) 
  City of Houston information 

 2017 City Business License issued to Gold Miners owned by Sandra Gauthier 
 2018 City Business License issued to ThaiStyx owned by John Zavacky 
 Clerk’s Office Notes in Business License File (2017) 
 2015 Correspondence between City and Ms. Gauthier 
 2017 Correspondence between City and AMCO 
 Minutes of all City Council meetings when licenses were on agenda since 2013 

    
Information provided at April meeting 
Lease dated September 27, 2017 

  4526 NOV  
4380 NOV 

  City of Houston protest 
  4380 Renewal application (Tab 12) 
  4526 Renewal application (Tab 13) 
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From: Hoelscher, James C (CED)
To: Davies, Jason M (CED); Hamilton, Joe (CED)
Subject: FW: Gold Miners Lodge Restaurant and Motel, LLC, AMCO Case #: AB18-1263
Date: Monday, December 10, 2018 7:35:59 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image003.png







Notice of Violation

Date: License #/Type:

Licensee: Address:

DBA: AMCO Case #:

Note: This is not an accusation or a criminal complaint.

Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office
ATTN: Enforcement 
550 W. 7th Ave, Suite 1600 
Anchorage, Alaska  99501
amco.enforcement@alaska.gov

Issuing Investigator:  Received by: 

SIGNATURE: SIGNATURE:

Delivered VIA: Date:  

2/27/19 Restaurant / Eating Place - #4380
Gold Miners Lodge Restaurant and Motel 20333 W. Parks Hwy, Houston, AK

 Gold Miners Lodge Restaurant and Motel AB19-0351

On 10-11-18, AMCO Investigators learned that Gold Miners Lodge Restaurant and Motel had leased
their property and liquor license to John & Inthira Zavacky on 10-1-17.

Your attention is referred to AS04.11.450: Prohibited financial interest, AS04.11.580: Surrender of
destruction of license, AS04.16.150: Licensee responsible for violations, AS04.21.030:
Responsibility of licensees, agents, and employees and 3AAC 304.105: Application generally

J. Hamilton

Mail
















